FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 0f STATE

RON DESANTIS CORD BYRD
Governor Secretary of State

August 6, 2024

Honorable Ken Burke

Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners
Pinellas County Courthouse

315 Court Street, 5" Floor

Clearwater, Florida 33756

Dear Ken Burke:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 125.66, Florida Statutes, this will acknowledge receipt of your
electronic copy of Pinellas County Ordinance No. 24-23, which was filed in this office on August 1, 2024.

Sincerely,

Alexandra Leijon
Administrative Code and Register Director

AL/wlh

R. A. Gray Building ¢ 500 South Bronough Street e Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250
Telephone: (850) 245-6270



Eres, Christian

From: County Ordinances <CountyOrdinances@dos.myflorida.com>
Sent: Tuesday, August 6, 2024 12:02 PM

To: Clerk Board Records; County Ordinances

Cc: Revie, Derelynn; Ribble, Teresa; Hooey, Docia A

Subject: RE: PIN20240801_Ordinance2024_24-23

Attachments: Pinellas20240801_Ordinance24_23_Ack.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

This Message Is From an External Sender -
Report Suspicious

This message came from outside your organization.

Good afternoon,
Please find the attached acknowledgment letter for Pinellas County Ordinance No. 24-23.

Best,

County Ordinances
Florida Administrative Code and Register
Room 701 The Capitol | Tallahassee, Florida

From: Clerk Board Records <BoardRecords@mypinellasclerk.gov>

Sent: Thursday, August 1, 2024 3:21 PM

To: County Ordinances <CountyOrdinances@dos.myflorida.com>

Cc: Clerk Board Records <BoardRecords@mypinellasclerk.gov>; Revie, Derelynn <drevie@mypinellasclerk.gov>; Ribble,
Teresa <tribble@mypinellasclerk.gov>; Hooey, Docia A <dhooey@mypinellasclerk.gov>

Subject: PIN20240801_Ordinance2024_24-23

EMAIL RECEIVED FROM EXTERNAL SOURCE

The attachments/links in this message have been scanned by Proofpoint.

Sender Full Name: Ken Burke, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller
Derelynn Revie, Deputy Clerk, Board Records Department

Sender Phone number: (727) 464-3458

County Name: Pinellas

Ordinance Number: PIN20240801_Ordinance2024_24-23

Thank you,



Christian Eres

Senior Board Records Specialist, Deputy Clerk

Board Records Department

Office of Ken Burke, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller
Pinellas County, Florida

315 Court Street, 5* Floor, Clearwater, FL. 33756

Office (727)464-4749 | Fax (727)464-4716

ceres(@ mypinellasclerk.gov | www.mypinellasclerk.gov

Tell us how we’re doing by filling out a comment card!

~Serving You~

| FRAUD #LERT ]

Sign up today and protect yourself from FRAUD!
Follow the Clerk:

“Fly S

Please Note: All mail sent to and from Pinellas County is subject to the Public Records Laws of Florida




ORDINANCE NO. 24- _23

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY OF PINELLAS RELATED
TO AD VALOREM TAX EXEMPTION; AMENDING CHAPTER
118 TO CREATE A NEW ARTICLE VIII; ADDITIONAL
HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION FOR QUALIFYING LIVING
QUARTERS OF PARENTS OR GRANDPARENTS;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AREAS
EMBRACED; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE;
PROVIDING FOR CORRECTION OF SCRIVENER’S ERRORS;
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners wishes to encourage the
provision of housing for senior citizens; and

WHEREAS, Section 193.703, Florida Statutes, and Article V11, section 4(e) of the Florida
Constitution authorizes Pinellas County to provide for a reduction in the assessed value of
homestead property for qualifying homestead properties; and

WHEREAS, such reduction in the assessed value reduces the ad valorem tax burden for
such properties and will encourage investment in construction and reconstruction of residential
properties to provide additional housing for family members;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS of Pinellas County, Florida that:

SECTION 1. Chapter 118 of the Pinellas County Code is hereby amended to include a new
Article V111 as follows:

ARTICLE VIII. Additional Homestead Exemption for Qualifying Living Quarters of Parents or
Grandparents

Section 118-192. Authority and intent.

This article is adopted pursuant to the specific authority of Section 6(f), Art. VII of the Florida
Constitution, and F.S. 8193.703. It is the intent of the Pinellas County Board of County
Commissioners to provide tax relief to eligible property owners, through the reduction in assessed
value for eligible homestead property.

Section 118-193. Definitions.
The following words, phrases and terms shall have the meanings set forth below. Except where
indicated otherwise, such words, phrases and terms shall have the same meanings attributed to

them in the Florida Statutes and the Florida Administrative Code as amended from time to time:

Board means the Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners.



County means Pinellas County, Florida.
Department of Revenue means the State of Florida Department of Revenue.
Property Appraiser means the Property Appraiser of Pinellas County, Florida.

Section 118-194. Reduction in assessed value of homestead property for qualifying living
quarters of parents or grandparents of owners of property receiving homestead exemption.

(a) The assessed value of homestead property may be annually reduced in accordance with the
provisions of this ordinance and applicable Florida Statutes, if the property has increased
in value resulting from the construction or reconstruction of the property for the purpose
of providing living quarters for one or more natural or adoptive parents or grandparents of
the owner of the property or of the owner's spouse and if at least one of the parents or
grandparents for whom the living quarters are provided resides thereon and is at least 62
years of age.

(b) The reduction in assessed value provided by this ordinance shall only apply to construction
or reconstruction to an existing homestead that occurred after [effective date of ordinance]
and is completed prior to January 1 of the year for which the reduction in assessed value is
sought.

(c) The reduction in assessed value shall only apply for taxable years during which at least
one such parent or grandparent maintains his or her primary place of residence in such
living quarters within the homestead property of the owner. For taxable years the parent
or grandparent maintains primary residence in such living quarters they shall not claim a
homestead tax exemption or residency-based exemption on other real property.

Section 118-195. Application Required.

(a) Every person claiming the additional assessed value reduction pursuant to this article must
file an application with the Property Appraiser. The applicant's statement shall attest to the
accuracy of all documentation provided, and the Property Appraiser shall not grant the
exemption without the required documentation.

(b) At the request of the Property Appraiser, the Board hereby waives the annual requirement
for the assessed value reduction pursuant to this article after the initial application is
approved and the reduction is granted as provided in Section 193.703 of the Florida
Statutes.

(c) Notwithstanding the above, an application shall be required if the property granted a
reduction is sold or otherwise disposed of, if the ownership changes in any manner, if the
applicant ceases to use the property as his or her homestead, or if the status of the owner
changes so as to change the use of the property qualifying for the reduction pursuant to
Section 193.703, Florida Statutes.



(d) The property owner shall notify the Property Appraiser when the property owner no longer
qualifies for the reduction in assessed value for living quarters of parents or grandparents.

Section 118-196. Termination.

When the property owner no longer qualifies for the reduction in assessed value for living quarters
of parents or grandparents, the previously excluded just value of such improvements as of the first
January 1 after the construction or reconstruction was substantially completed shall be added back
to the assessed value of the property.

Section 118-197. Penalty.

If the owner of homestead property for which such a reduction in assessed value has been granted
under this Article is found to have made any willfully false statement in the application for the
reduction, the assessed value reduction shall be revoked by the Property Appraiser and a tax lien
may be filed pursuant to Section 193.703 of the Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2. Severability and Scrivener’s Errors. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause,
phrase, or provision of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any
Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not be construed to render the remaining
provisions of this Ordinance invalid or unconstitutional. Any scrivener’s errors unrelated to the
substantive application and enforcement of this ordinance may be amended prior to codification.

SECTION 3 Areas Embraced. This ordinance shall be effective in the unincorporated areas of
the County.

SECTION 4. Inclusion in Code. It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that
the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Pinellas County Code and
that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word “ordinance” may
be changed to section, article or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such
intentions, and that any simple scrivener’s errors may be corrected prior to codification.

SECTION 5. Filing of Ordinance; Effective Date.  Pursuant to Section 125.66, Florida Statutes,
a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be filed with the Department of State by the Clerk of the
Board of County Commissioners within ten (10) days after enactment by the Board of County
Commissioners. This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing of the ordinance with the
Department of State.

APPROVED AS TO FORM
By: _ Derrill McAteer

Office of the County Attorney

PCAO 479704


aty105966
AATF


STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF PINELLAS

I, KEN BURKE, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Ex-officio Clerk to the Board
of County Commissioners, in and for the State and County aforesaid, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of an Ordinance adopted by
the Board of County Commissioners of Pinellas County, Florida, on July
30, 2024 relative to:

ORDINANCENO.24- 23

AN OFDINANCE OF THE COUNTY OF PINELLAS RETATED
TO AD VALOFEM TAX EXEMPTION; AMENDING CHAPTER.
118 TO CREATE A NEW ARTICLE VII; ADDITIONAL
HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION FOR QUALIFYING LIVING
QUARTERS OF PARENTS OF GRANDPARENTS;
PROVIDING FOR. SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR. AREAS
EMBEACED; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE;
PROVIDING FOF. CORRECTION OF SCRIVENER'S ERRORS;
AND PROVIDING FOR. AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | hereunto set my hand and official seal this
August 1, 2024

KEN BURKE
Sl T, Clerk of the Circuit Court
3 ) and Ex-officio Clerk to the

: 5 izs Board of County Commissioners
j’%&? Py ";:e\\: .': .f'-: II: //— .
SV 00 O 4 v

Derelynn Revie, Deputy Clerk




Eres, Christian

From: Clerk Board Records
Sent: Thursday, August 1, 2024 3:21 PM
To: County Ordinances
Cc: Clerk Board Records; Revie, Derelynn; Ribble, Teresa; Hooey, Docia A
Subject: PIN20240801_Ordinance2024_24-23
Attachments: PIN20240801_Ordinance2024_24-23.pdf
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

315 Court Street, 5" Floor, Clearwater, FL. 33756

Office (727)464-4749 | Fax (727)464-4716

ceres@ mypinellasclerk.gov | www.mypinellasclerk.gov

Tell us how we’te doing by filling out a comment card!

~Serving You~

| FRAUD #RJLERT |

Sign up today and protect vourself from FRAUD!
F 9110w the Clerk:

K& =

Please Note: All mail sent to and from Pinellas County is subject to the Public Records Laws of Florida






